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Premiere Horizon Alliance Corporation
PHA

PSE Disclosure Form 5-1 - Substantial Acquisitions
References: SRC Rule 17 (SEC Form 17-C) and 


Section 4.4 and/or Section 5 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Subject of the Disclosure

Joint venture and investment by Premiere Horizon Alliance Corp. (PHA) in Phil Star Development Bank, Inc. (PDB)

Background/Description of the Disclosure

The Board of Directors of PHA on August 30, 2021 approved the assignment by Squidpay Technology Inc. (SPT) to PHA,
of SPT’s 40% of the 60% share that SQUIDPAY will invest in PHILSTAR, pursuant to the Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) previously executed between SPT, PDB and Philippine Regional Investment Development Corporation (PRIDE)
on 8 April 2021.


In connection to the same, PHA and SPT executed on 31 August 2021 a Deed of Assignment to effect the foregoing, with
conformity of PRIDE and PDB. The assignment formally made PHA a party to the MOA, together with PRIDE, PDB and
SPT.


In the MOA, Squidpay will infuse up to Nine Hundred Million Pesos (Php900,000,000.00) for a 60% stake in PDB, subject
to the conditions contained therein and subsequent implementing agreements and outlines the overall partnership of
PDB, PRIDE, PDB (and now with PHA) in the endeavor. The current stockholders of PDB, which includes PRIDE will
retain at least 40%. The investment is in line with PDB’s thrust to transform itself and engage in digital banking and PHA’s
business as an investment holding company.


SPT is a homegrown fintech company engaged in online and offline payment solutions for automated fare collections,
bills payment, e-commerce payments, merchant payment services and electronic loading. Recently, SPT was granted by
BSP its Operator of Payment System (OPS) and Electronic Money Issuer (EMI) licenses. With its various LGU and major
bank relationships, SPT's integrated digital bank operations creates an array of financial services that closes the gap
between the country’s deep mobile phone penetration and lagging online transactions growth. 


PDB is a subsidiary of AbaCore Capital Holdings, Inc. (ABA)’s 100% subsidiary PRIDE. It was the oldest rural bank in
Batangas before it was converted into a development bank. As disclosed ABA previously, the Board of Directors of PDB
approved the amendments to the corporate structure of the bank to support its shift into a digital bank. 

PRIDE is a duly licensed investment house and a member of the Investment House Association of the Philippines (IHAP)
and currently has an authorized capital stock of 1 billion pesos and an asset base of P2.5 billion pesos. PRIDE’s thrust is
to develop projects that uplift the Philippine countryside.

Date of Approval by
Board of Directors Aug 30, 2021

Date of Approval by
Stockholders TBA

Other Relevant
Regulatory Agency, if
applicable

Board and Stockholders approval for SPT, PRIDE, PDB and PHA. BSP application for digital
banking.

Date of Approval by
Relevant Regulatory
Agency

TBA

Rationale for the transaction including the benefits which are expected to be accrued to the Issuer as a result of the
transaction



The transaction is the first step in solidifying the endeavor of PDB, in partnership with SPT, PRIDE and PHA, to become a
digital bank, subject to the approval of the BSP. As PDB is a bank servicing rural areas, it will likewise be in line with the
focus of PHA in its business as an investment holding company focused on countryside development, including
technology.


The vision of parties is for PDB to become the leader in financial inclusion using innovative financial technology, agency
banking, and digital platforms. The mission is to serve clients at the base of the pyramid by providing inclusive financial
services and products while achieving dual bottom-line of financial sustainability and financial inclusion. The intention is
for PDB to reach the unbanked and underserved segment through countrywide network and system infrastructure
through technology such as, but not limited to mobile based banking app, web/internet banking, and through agent
banks. Technology, with SPT as a partner in the endeavor will be the main driver for further client acquisition by PDB.
The partnership between the parties to the transaction will disrupt and win the underserved and unbanked market. PDB
will bring its banking expertise, SPT will bring its financial technology expertise, while PHA and PRIDE, their expertise in
countryside development.

Description of the transaction including the timetable for implementation and related regulatory requirements, if any

As the assignee of 40% of the 60% investment of SPT in the MOA, PHA will invest up to Php600,000,000.00 in cash
and/or assets in PDB, with the end view of being 40% owner of PDB. PHA will subscribe to 2,000,000 common shares of
PDB (with par value of Php100 per share) at Php300 per share. 


The investment of PHA and SPT is subject to conditions under the MOA, which includes the approval of the BSP of the
investment and the approval/transitioning of PDB into a digital bank.


On 31 August 2021, PDB filed with the BSP its application for the approval of the transaction and application for a digital
banking license.


Within 10 days from the closing conditions provided in the MOA, which includes the BSP approval of the transaction and
the application for the digital banking license of PDB, the parties will execute the relevant subscription agreements for the
said investment.

Identities of the parties to the transaction

Name Nature of Business Nature of any material relationship with the Issuer,
their directors/officers or any of their affiliates

Premiere
Horizon
Alliance
Corporation

PHA is a Philippine based investment holding
company whose shares are listed in the Philippine
Stock Exchange (PSE). It is engaged in countryside
development with a focus on the areas of food
security, natural resources development, life
sciences, technology and tourism.

Not Applicable

Squidpay
Technology
Inc.

Squidpay Technology Inc. is a homegrown fintech
company engaged in online and offline payment
solutions for automated fare collections, bills
payment, e-commerce payments, merchant system
payments and electronic loading. SPT was granted
by the BSP its Operator of Payment System (OPS)
and Electronic Money Issuer (EMI) licenses. With its
various LGU and major bank relationships, SPT’s
integrated digital bank operations creates an array of
financial services for financial inclusion.

The shareholders and affiliates of SPT, led by its
Chairman, Mr. Marvin Dela Cruz, owns 55% of the
outstanding capital stock of PHA. One of PHA’s
independent directors, Ms. Elisa May Arboleda-
Cuevas, is concurrently the President of SPT. PHA
director and treasurer Brandon P. Leong is
likewise a director of SPT. Meanwhile, directors
Augusto M. Cosio, Jr. (PHA Chairman), and
Roberto B. Ortiz, also serves as part of the
independent board of advisors of SPT.]

Philstar
Development
Bank, Inc.

PDB is s subsidiary of PRIDE, which in turn is a
100% subsidiary of ABA. PDB was the oldest rural
bank in the province of Batangas before it
transitioned into a development bank.

Other than the transaction subject of this
disclosure, there are no other material relationship
with the issuer, their directors/officer or any of their
affiliates

Philippine
Regional
Investment
Development
Corporation

PRIDE is a duly licensed investment house and a
member of the Investment House Association of the
Philippines. It currently has an authorized capital
stock of P1 billion and an asset base of P2.5 billion.
PRIDE’s thrust is to develop projects that uplift the
Philippine countryside.

Other than the transaction subject of this
disclosure, there are no other material relationship
with the issuer, their directors/officer or any of their
affiliates

Terms and conditions of the transaction

The nature and amount of consideration (e.g. price per share, the aggregate amount)



Up to Php600,000,000.00 for 2,000,000 common shares of PDB at a subscription price of Php300 per share.


The foregoing investment, when approved by the relevant regulatory agencies including the BSP, will make PHA directly
own 40% of the outstanding capital stock of PDB.

Basis upon which the amount of consideration or value of the transaction was determined

The value of the transaction was based on the current amount of unissued shares of PDB based on its latest authorized
capital stock. Considering that PDB has a total of 3,000,000 unissued stock and the investment of PHA of
Php600,000,000 for 40%, the same will equate to the value of Php300 per share.


The Php300 per share is a commercial agreement between the parties in line with the parties’, in line with PHA, SPT and
PDB’s shared vision on countryside upliftment and development, financial inclusion through technology, with the
CALABARZON region being a growth area, coupled with the national push for digital banking.

The number of shares
to be acquired 2,000,000 common shares

Ratio/percentage to
total outstanding
capital stock

40

Terms of payment

Pursuant to the MOA which PHA became a party to following the assignment by SPT, the terms of payment shall be
subject to a separate implementing agreement between the parties but not longer than 3 years from closing.

Conditions precedent to closing of the transaction, if any

Approval of the BSP of the transaction and digital banking license application of PDB and all corporate and third party
consents shall have been obtained.

Description of the company subject of the transaction

Nature and business

PDB is a subsidiary of AbaCore Capital Holdings, Inc. (ABA)’s 100% subsidiary PRIDE. It was the oldest rural bank in
Batangas before it was converted into a development bank.


PDB, formerly PRIDE Star Development Bank, Inc. was incorporated on 2 March 1956. In its latest Articles of
Incorporation, it is authorized to engage and carry in the development banking business and has an authorized capital
stock of P500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000 common shares with a par value of P100 peso per share. 


Submission of BSP application for approval of transaction/application for digital banking license – 31 August 2021


BSP completion of processing – end of September 2021


Closing – within 10 days from BSP approval


Full transitioning to a digital bank by PDB – within 3 years from approval of the BSP

Discussion of major projects and investments

Application for Digital Banking License.

List of subsidiaries and affiliates, with percentage holdings

Name % Ownership
None None

Capital structure

Authorized capital stock

Type of Security Amount Number of Shares
Common 500,000,000.00 5,000,000



Subscribed Shares

Type of Security Amount Number of Shares
Common 200,000,000.00 2,000,000-

Paid-Up Capital

Amount 180,600,100.00
Number of Shares 1,806,001

Issued Shares

Type of Security Amount Number of Shares
Common 200,000,000.00 2,000,000

Outstanding Shares

Type of Security Amount Number of Shares
Common 200,000,000.00 2,000,000

Par Value

Type of Security Amount
Common 100.00

Ownership Structure (including percentage holdings)

Name Number of Shares % Ownership
Philippine Regional investment Development Corp. 799,995 40
Blue Stock Development Holdings, Inc. 399,999 20
Hedge Integrated Management Group, Inc. 399,999 20
Rodrigo C. Reyes 400,000 20
Regina O. Reyes 2 0
Raul B. De Mesa 1 0
Arturo V. Magtibay 1 0
Iluminado B. Montemayor 1 0
Antonio Victoriano F. Gregorio III 1 0
Clarita T. Zarraga 1 0

Board of Directors

Name (Regular or Independent)
Raul B. De Mesa Chairman
Rodrigo C. Reyes Regular
Illuminado B. Montemayor Regular
Regina O. Reyes Regular
Arturo V. Magtibay Regular
Antonio Victoriano F. Gregorio III Regular
Clarita T. Zarraga Independent

Principal Officers

Name Position/Designation
Rodrigo C. Reyes President
Illuminado B. Montemayor Treasurer
Ednalyn C. Escalona General Manager
Melecia H. Pagcaliwagan Cashier
Mary Remie Jane T. Marasigan Corporate Secretary

Effect(s)/impact on the business, financial condition and operations of the Issuer



The investment and joint venture into digital banking is in line with PHA’s vision of countryside development and together
with SPT, promoting financial inclusivity especially to the unbanked. Amidst the ongoing pandemic, digital banking
provides convenience and reach to customers that will give them easy access to funds. The potential economic benefit to
PHA in being a part of this growing industry is significant.


Together with the fold-in of SPT, the investment in PRIDE, will create a Fintech business unit for PHA that is continues to
grow and thrive amidst the pandemic and physical lockdowns. This will provide substantial economic cushion for PHA
while waiting for the pandemic to ease.

Other Relevant Information

See attached PDB Art. of Inc. and By-Laws, Rural Bank AOI, General Information Sheet, the latest AFS and Deed of
Assignment.

Filed on behalf by:
Name Raul Ma. Anonas

Designation Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Information Officer
(CIO) and SEC Compliance Officer
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Ramon F. Garcia & Company, CPAs 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

 

 

 

The Shareholders and Board of Directors 

PHIL STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC. 

(Formerly, PRIDE STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC.) 

Alpa Hotel Tolentino Road    

Kumintang Ibaba, Batangas City 

 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the financial statements of PHIL STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC. (the “Bank”) (formerly, PRIDE 

STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC.) which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 

and 2019, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of 

cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Company as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows 

for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards in Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that 

are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, the Code of Ethics for Professional 

Accountants in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 

with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis for accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosure, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a 

whole. The supplementary information on taxes and licenses and other information in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of 

the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected 

to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information 

is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

 

 

RAMON F. GARCIA & COMPANY, CPAs 

By: 

                     

HONORATA L. PAGUIO 

Partner 

CPA Certificate No. 0078850        

PTR No. 8567296, January 24, 2021, Makati City 

TIN 105-540-683 

BOA/PRC Accreditation No. 0207 (November 11, 2019 to April 8, 2023) 

Partner’s BIR Accreditation No. 08-001759-3-2020 (February 24, 2020 to February 23, 2023) 

Partner’s SEC Accreditation No. 78850-A (Valid for the audit of 2019-2023 Financial Statements) 

Partner’s BSP Accreditation No. 78850-B (Valid for the audit of 2020-2024 Financial Statements) 

Firm’s BIR Accreditation No. 08-001759-1-2020 (February 24, 2020 to February 23, 2023) 

Firm’s SEC Accreditation No. 0257-FR-2 (October 18, 2018 to October 17, 2021) 

Firm’s BSP Accreditation No. 0207-B (Valid for the audit of 2020-2024 Financial Statements) 

 

April 27, 2021 

Makati City 

 

 

 



PHIL STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC. 
(formerly Pride Star Development Bank, Inc.) 

               
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019 
 

 
      Note   2020   2019 
 
Assets             
Cash and other cash items   5   P610,109   P730,043 
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 6   2,456,979   1,650,982 
Due from other banks   7   28,995,985   87,021,762 
Financial assets at amortized cost 8  15,041,463  19,438,514 
Loans and other receivables, net 9   162,012,785   86,302,894 
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and     
   equipment, net 10   8,514,572   8,247,070 
Investment properties, net    11   24,821,930   24,871,330 
Retirement asset   18   282,822   812,829 
Prepaid tax   19  -  195,495 
Deferred tax assets   19   3,305,635   3,694,985 
Other assets   12   497,839   465,304 

  Total assets      P246,540,119   P233,431,208 

              
Liabilities           
Deposit liabilities   13   P28,965,467   P20,246,486 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities  14   2,246,225   2,137,327 
Income tax payable 19  343,909  - 
  Total liabilities      31,555,601   22,383,813 
             
Equity          
Paid-up capital    15   180,600,100   180,600,100 
Retained earnings      34,820,498   30,638,633 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net 18   (436,080)   (191,338) 

  Total equity      214,984,518  211,047,395 

  Total liabilities and equity     P246,540,119   P233,431,208 
 
 

(The notes on pages 1 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.) 



PHIL STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC. 
(formerly Pride Star Development Bank, Inc.) 

            
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019 
            
      

   Note 2020   2019 
            
Interest income         
  On loans 9 P12,375,754  P5,977,697 
 On financial assets at amortized cost  8 871,612  240,524 
 On deposits with banks  7 708,990  1,014,210 

    13,956,356  7,232,431 
Interest expense 13 296,534  316,680 
Net interest income  13,659,822  6,915,751 
Provision for impairment loss 9,11 1,318,027  22,174 
Net interest income after provision for impairment loss 12,341,795  6,893,577 
Other income      
  Service fees  1,483,627  648,619 
  Miscellaneous income 10,11 5,442  6,541,654 
     1,489,069  7,190,273 
     13,830,864  14,083,850 
Other operating expenses      
  Compensation and other benefits  16 4,574,690  4,678,744 
  Taxes and licenses 23 868,192  1,640,979 
  Other expenses 16 2,953,318  3,945,043 
     8,396,200  10,264,766 
Income before income tax  5,434,664  3,819,084 
Provision for income tax 19 1,252,799  924,457 
Net income for the year   4,181,865  2,894,627 
     
Other comprehensive income (loss), net        
  Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss      

  
    Actuarial gain (loss) on remeasurement of retirement 

obligation, net 18 (244,742)   71,926 

Net comprehensive income for the year   P3,937,123   P2,966,553 
 
 

(The notes on pages 1 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.) 
 
 



PHIL STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC. 
(formerly Pride Star Development Bank, Inc.) 

                
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019 
 

                

      
Paid-up capital 

(Note 15) 

Accumulated other 
comprehensive loss, 

net 
(Note 18) 

Retained 
earnings 

Deposit for future 
stock subscription 

(Note 15) Total equity 
                
Balance at January 1, 2019    P72,489,000                  (P263,264)       P27,744,006            P27,511,000       P127,480,742  
Issuance of shares through application of deposit for 

future stock subscription 27,511,000 - - (27,511,000) - 
Paid-up capital on additional share subscription  80,600,100 - - - 80,600,100 
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of retirement 

obligation, net  - 71,926 - - 71,926 
Net income for the year  - - 2,894,627 - 2,894,627 
Balance at December 31, 2019 180,600,100 (191,338) 30,638,633 - 211,047,395 
Actuarial loss on remeasurement of retirement 

obligation, net  - (244,742) - - (244,742) 
Net income for the year  - - 4,181,865 - 4,181,865 

Balance at December 31, 2020 P180,600,100 (P436,080) P34,820,498 P- P214,984,518 

                
 

(The notes on pages 1 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
(The notes on pages 1 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.) 

PHIL STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC. 
(formerly Pride Star Development Bank, Inc.) 

 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019 
 

 Note 2020  2019 
     
Cash flows from operating activities     
Income before income tax  P5,434,664  P3,819,084 
Adjustments for:      

Provision for impairment loss 9,11 1,318,027  22,174 
Retirement benefit cost 16,18 180,375  177,088 
Depreciation and amortization 10,12,16 107,245  175,806 
Gain on sale of furniture and fixtures 10 (494)  - 
Gain on sale of investment properties 11 -  (6,533,958) 
Interest income  7,8,9 (13,956,356)  (7,232,431) 
Interest expense  13 296,534  316,680 
Interest received  7,9 14,866,236  7,858,985 
Interest paid  13 (266,256)  (452,500) 

Operating income (loss) before changes in working capital   7,979,975  (1,849,072) 
Changes in working capital     

 (Increase) Decrease in:      
    Loans and other receivables  (78,760,010)  (37,928,643) 
    Other assets   (25,868)  6,445 
Increase (Decrease) in:     
    Deposit liabilities  8,718,981  (10,325,356) 
    Accrued expenses and other liabilities   78,620  511,681 

Cash used in operations   (62,008,302)  (49,584,945) 
Contribution to retirement fund 18 -  (549,000) 
Income tax paid 19 (219,155)  - 
Net cash used in operating activities   (62,227,457)  (50,133,945) 
     
Cash flows from investing activities     
Redemption of agrarian reform bonds 8 4,578,141  474,255 
Interest received on investment in agrarian reform bonds  8 690,522  191,406 
Proceeds from sale of furniture and fixtures 10 500  - 
Additions to bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment  10 (341,420)  (17,864) 
Addition to intangible assets 12 (40,000)  - 
Purchase of agrarian reform bonds  8 -  (19,863,651) 
Additions to investment properties 11 -  (548,755) 
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 11 -  16,100,000 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  4,887,743  (3,664,609) 
     
Cash flow from financing activity      
Paid-up capital on share subscription 15 -  80,600,100 
     
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (57,339,714)  26,801,546 
     
Cash and cash equivalents  

January 1  
 
 89,402,787  62,601,241 

December 31   P32,063,073  P89,402,787 
     
Cash and cash equivalents      
Cash and other cash items 5 P610,109  P730,043 
Due from BSP 6 2,456,979  1,650,982 
Due from other banks 7 28,995,985  87,021,762 
   P32,063,073  P89,402,787 



 

PHIL STAR DEVELOPMENT BANK, INC. 
(formerly Pride Star Development Bank, Inc.) 

  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019 
 
 
NOTE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
1.1 Corporate information 
 
Phil Star Development Bank, Inc. (the “Bank”) was registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) on March 2, 1956 per SEC Registration No. 10906 to carry on and engage in the 
development banking business as provided for in all pertinent banking laws of the Republic of the 
Philippines, and to have and exercise all powers, rights, privileges and attributes of a development 
bank and in the course of its business and operations.  On January 21, 2006, the term of existence of 
the Bank was extended for another fifty years from and after the date of expiry on March 2, 2006.  
 
On August 22, 2013 and September 26, 2013, the Bank adopted the Amended Articles of Incorporation 
amending Articles I and III respectively, by the unanimous vote of the Board of Directors (BOD) and by 
the vote of the stockholders owning more than two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock.  The 
amended Articles to read as follows: 
 
I. "FIRST: That the name of the corporation shall be Phil Star Development Bank, Inc. (as approved by 

the BOD and ratified by the stockholders on August 22, 2013)"  
II. "THIRD: That the principal office of the corporation is to be located at Alpa Hotel, Tolentino Road, 

Kumintang Ibaba, Batangas City." 
 
The Amended Articles of Incorporation was filed with the SEC on June 18, 2014 and approved on          
July 14, 2014. 
 
As a banking institution, its operations are regulated and supervised by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 
(BSP), wherein the Bank is required to comply with the rules and regulations of the BSP such as the use 
of safe and sound banking practices. On March 7, 2008, the Bank applied for its conversion into a 
private development bank.  
 
The Monetary Board of the BSP, in its Resolution No. 1146 dated September 4, 2008, approved the 
conversion/upgrading of the Bank into a thrift bank (a private development bank). The BSP issued a 
certificate of authority certifying the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the 
Bank.  
 
1.2 Approval of the financial statements  
 
The financial statements of the Bank were approved and authorized for issue by the BOD on April 27, 
2021, and that Rodrigo C. Reyes, the Bank’s President, was authorized to sign and cause the issuance 
of the financial statements on its behalf. 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
2.1 Basis of preparation 
 
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 
discussed in this note.  These policies have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless 
otherwise stated. 
 
Statement of compliance 
 
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRSs). The term PFRSs in general includes all applicable PFRSs, Philippine 
Accounting Standards (PAS) and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee, Standing 
Interpretations Committee and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), 
which have been approved by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the 
SEC.  
 
Presentation of financial statements  
 
The financial statements are presented in accordance with PAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of Financial 
Statements. The Bank presents all items of income and expense in a single statement of comprehensive 
income, with profit or loss and other comprehensive income (OCI) presented in two sections.  It is 
required to present a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative 
period when the Bank applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement 
of items in its financial statements, or reclassifies items in the financial statements and said 
retrospective application, retrospective restatement or reclassification has a material effect on such 
third statement of financial position. The related notes to the third statement of financial position are 
not required to be disclosed. 
 
These financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the Bank’s functional 
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest peso. Functional currency is the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates or in which it primarily generates and 
expends cash, while presentation currency is the currency in which the financial statements are 
presented. 
 
Basis of measurement 
 
The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the 
accounting policies that follow. 
 
Use of judgments and estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with PFRSs requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires the Bank’s management to exercise its judgment in applying the 
Bank's accounting policies. The areas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in 
preparing the financial statements and their effects are disclosed in Note 3. 
 
2.2  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 
 
The accounting policies applicable and adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are 
consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new/amended 
standards and interpretations effective starting January 1, 2020. 
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 Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Definition of Material 
 
The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definitions used across 
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding of the 
existing requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity’s materiality judgments. 
 
Three new aspects of the new definition include (i) obscuring; (ii) could reasonably be expected 
to influence; and (iii) primary users. 
 
The amendments stress especially five ways material information can be obscured: 
 
a. if the language regarding a material item, transaction or other event is vague or unclear; 
b. if information regarding a material item, transaction or other event is scattered in different 

places in the consolidated financial statements; 
c. if dissimilar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately aggregated; 
d. if similar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately disaggregated; and 
e. if material information is hidden by immaterial information to the extent that it becomes 

unclear what information is material. 
 
The adoption of these amendments has no significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements. 

 
 Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business 

 
The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the 
assessment of a market participant’s ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the 
definition of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process 
is substantive and add illustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is 
introduced which permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and 
assets is not a business. 

 
These amendments have no impact on the Bank’s financial statements. 

 
 Amendments to PFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 
 

Lessees (but not lessors) are provided with relief in the form of an optional exemption from 
assessing whether a rent concession related to COVID-19, and that meets certain conditions, is a 
lease modification.  Lessees can elect to account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way 
as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting 
for the concession as a variable lease payment. 
 
The practical expedient only applies to lessees’ rent concessions occurring as a direct 
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, and only if all of the following conditions are met: 
 
a. the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially 

the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 
b. any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before June 30, 2021; and 
c. there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. 
 
If a lessee chooses to apply the practical expedient to a lease, it must apply the practical expedient 
consistently to all lease contracts with similar characteristics and in similar circumstances, as 
required by paragraph 2 of PFRS 16. 
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The amendment is to be applied retrospectively in accordance with PAS 8. However, lessees are 
not required to restate prior period amounts, and they are not required to disclose the 
information required by paragraph 28(f) of PAS 8 in the period of adoption. 
 
The adoption of these amendments has no significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements 
since there is no change in the lease payments during the year. 

 
Standards effective after December 31, 2020 
 
The Bank will adopt the following new pronouncements when these become effective. Except as 
otherwise indicated, the Bank does not expect the adoption of these new pronouncements to have a 
significant impact on the financial statements. 
 
 Annual improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle 

 
o Amendments to PFRS 1, Subsidiary as a first-time adopter 
 

The amendment permits a subsidiary that applies PFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation 
differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition 
to PFRSs. 

 
o Amendments to PFRS 9, Fees in the ‘10 percent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities 
 

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of 
PFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid 
or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received 
by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf. 

 
o Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease incentives 
 

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying PFRS 16 removes from the example 
the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to 
resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise 
because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.  

 
o Amendments to PAS 41, Taxation in fair value measurements 
 

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 for entities to exclude 
taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value 
technique.  This will ensure consistency with the requirements in PFRS 13. 

 
The amendments to PFRS 1, PFRS 9 and PAS 41 are all effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2022.  Early application is permitted.  The amendment to PFRS 16 only regards an 
illustrative example, so no effective date is stated. 
 
The Bank is still evaluating the impact of these new amendments. 

 
 Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 
 

The changes in the standard are as follows: 
 

o Update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 
Framework; 
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o Add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of PAS 37 
or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework) to 
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and  

o Add to PFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent assets 
acquired in a business combination. 

 
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Early 
application is permitted if an entity also applies all other updated references (published together 
with the updated Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier. 
 
The Bank is still evaluating the impact of these new amendments. 

 
 Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before intended use 
 

The standard is amended to prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those 
items, in profit or loss. 
 
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Early 
application is permitted. An entity applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of 
property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the 
earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the 
amendments. 

 
The Bank is still evaluating the impact of these new amendments. 

 
 Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract 
 

The changes in Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to PAS 37) specify 
that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs 
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples 
would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling 
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, 
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). 
 
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Early 
application is permitted. 
 
Entities apply the amendments to contracts for which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its 
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the 
amendments. Comparatives are not restated. 
 
The Bank is still evaluating the impact of these new amendments. 

 
 PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 
 

PFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 
of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of PFRS 17 is to ensure that 
an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information 
gives a basis for users of the consolidated financial statements to assess the effect that insurance 
contracts have on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 
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The key principles in PFRS 17 are that an entity: 
 

a. identifies as insurance contracts those contracts under which the entity accepts significant 
insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the 
policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the 
policyholder; 

b. separates specified embedded derivatives, distinct investment components and distinct 
performance obligations from the insurance contracts; 

c. divides the contracts into groups that it will recognize and measure; 
d. recognizes and measures groups of insurance contracts at: 

i. a risk-adjusted present value of the future cash flows (the fulfilment cash flows) that 
incorporates all of the available information about the fulfilment cash flows in a way that 
is consistent with observable market information; plus (if this value is a liability) or minus 
(if this value is an asset); or 

ii. an amount representing the unearned profit in the group of contracts (the contractual 
service margin); 

e. recognizes the profit from a group of insurance contracts over the period the entity provides 
insurance cover, and as the entity is released from risk. If a group of contracts is or becomes 
loss-making, an entity recognizes the loss immediately; 

f. presents separately insurance revenue (that excludes the receipt of any investment 
component), insurance service expenses (that excludes the repayment of any investment 
components) and insurance finance income or expenses; and 

g. discloses information to enable users of the consolidated financial statements to assess the 
effect that contracts within the scope of PFRS 17 have on the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of an entity. 

 
PFRS 17 includes an optional simplified measurement approach, or premium allocation approach, 
for simpler insurance contracts. 
 
The standard is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is 
permitted. 
 
The amendments are not applicable to the Bank since it has no activities that are predominantly 
connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.   

 
 Amendments to PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 
 

The main changes resulting from Amendments to PFRS 17 and Extension of the Temporary 
Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to PFRS 4) issued on June 25, 2020 are: 

 
o Deferral of the date of initial application of PFRS 17 by two years to annual periods beginning 

on or after January 1, 2023 and change the fixed expiry date for the temporary exemption in 
PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts from applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments so that entities would 
be required to apply PFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.  

o Additional scope exclusion for credit card contracts and similar contracts that provide 
insurance coverage as well as optional scope exclusion for loan contracts that transfer 
significant insurance risk.  

o Recognition of insurance acquisition cash flows relating to expected contract renewals, 
including transition provisions and guidance for insurance acquisition cash flows recognized in 
a business acquired in a business combination. 

o Clarification of the application of PFRS 17 in interim financial statements allowing an 
accounting policy choice at a reporting entity level.  
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o Clarification of the application of contractual service margin attributable to investment-return 
service and investment-related service and changes to the corresponding disclosure 
requirements.  

o Extension of the risk mitigation option to include reinsurance contracts held and non-financial 
derivatives.  

o Amendments to require an entity that at initial recognition recognizes losses on onerous 
insurance contracts issued to also recognize a gain on reinsurance contracts held.  

o Simplified presentation of insurance contracts in the statement of financial position so that 
entities would present insurance contract assets and liabilities in the statement of financial 
position determined using portfolios of insurance contracts rather than groups of insurance 
contracts.  

o Additional transition relief for business combinations and additional transition relief for the 
date of application of the risk mitigation option and the use of the fair value transition 
approach.  

o Several small amendments regarding minor application issues.  
 

An entity shall apply PFRS 17 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. If 
an entity applies PFRS 17 earlier, it shall disclose that fact. Early application is permitted for entities 
that apply PFRS 9, Financial Instruments on or before the date of initial application of PFRS 17. 
 
The Bank is still evaluating the impact of these new amendments. 

 
 Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 
 

The amendment provides a more general approach to the classification of liabilities under PAS 1, 
Presentation of Financial Statements based on the contractual arrangements in place at the 
reporting date. The amendments currently have an effective date of January 1, 2022. 
 
In April 2020, the IASB held a supplementary IASB meeting to consider COVID-19-related matters 
including the Board's timelines in view of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Board tentatively decided 
to delay by one year the effective date of the amendments to annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2023. 
 
There are no changes in the original amendments other than the deferral of the effective date. 
 
The Bank is still evaluating the impact of these new amendments. 

 
Deferred Effectivity 
 
 Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of 

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
 

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of 
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments 
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves 
a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or 
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent 
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. 
 
On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council postponed the original effective 
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the IASB has completed its broader review of 
the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for 
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures. 
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The Bank is currently assessing the impact of the above amendments and to be adopted when 
effective and applicable. 

 
2.3 Cash and cash equivalents  
 
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items, due 
from BSP and other banks, and highly-liquid financial instruments, if any, with original maturities of 
three months or less from the dates of placement and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.  
 
Cash and other cash items include local currency coins and checks on hand. 
 
2.4 Financial instruments 
 
Initial recognition and measurement  
 
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognized in the statement of financial position when the 
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.   
 
At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or a financial liability at its fair value plus or 
minus, in the case of a financial asset or a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or the 
financial liability. 
 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual 
cash flow characteristics and the Bank’s business model for managing them. On initial recognition, a 
financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value through OCI, and FVPL.   
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Bank changes its 
business model for managing financial assets, in which case, all affected financial assets are reclassified 
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.   
 
Subsequent measurement 

 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:  
 
i. Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)  
ii. Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt 

instruments)   
iii. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and 

losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)  
iv. Financial assets at FVPL  
 
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)  
 
The Bank measures a financial asset at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:  
 
i. It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 

and  
ii. Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal 

and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
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Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and 
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognized, modified or impaired.  
 
The Bank’s financial assets at amortized cost as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 include cash and cash 
equivalents, investments in agrarian reform bonds, loans and other receivables, and other assets (petty 
cash fund and deposit for safety deposit box).  

 
Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)  
 
The Bank measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are 
met:  
 
i. The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect 

contractual cash flows and selling; and  
ii. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI 

on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and 
impairment losses or reversals are recognized in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as 
for financial assets measured at amortized cost.  The remaining fair value changes are recognized in 
OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profit or 
loss.  

 
The Bank does not have financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) as at                        
December 31, 2020 and 2019.   
 
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)  
 
Upon initial recognition, the Bank can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity 
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under PAS 
32, Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.  
 
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Gains and losses on these 
financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other income in profit 
or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Bank benefits from such 
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded 
in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment 
assessment.  
 
The Bank does not have financial assets at fair value through OCI (equity instruments) as at       
December 31, 2020 and 2019.   
 
Financial assets at FVPL  
 
Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial 
recognition at FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.  Financial 
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 
in the near term.  Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at 
FVPL, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be 
classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be 
designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting 
mismatch. 
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Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes 
in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognized as 
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established. 
 
The Bank does not have financial assets at FVPL as at December 31, 2020 and 2019.  
 
Impairment of financial assets  
 
The Bank recognizes an expected credit loss (ECL) for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are 
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and 
all the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 
effective interest rate (EIR). The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral 
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are recognized in 
two stages: a) for credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are 
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL); and b) for those credit exposures for which there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for 
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default 
(a lifetime ECL).  
 
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Bank compares the risk of default 
occurring on the asset as at the financial reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial 
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information which 
includes the following:   
 
i. Internal/external credit rating 
ii. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that 

are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations 
iii. Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor 
iv. Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor  
v. Significant changes in the expected performance and behavior of the debtor, including changes 

in the payment status of debtor and changes in the operating results of the debtor    
 
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Bank 
categorizes a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make payments or when it is 
probable that the receivable will not be collected.  Where loans or receivables have been written off, 
the Bank continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.  Where 
recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.  
 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as (a) financial liabilities at FVPL (including financial liabilities held for 
trading and those that are designated at fair value), and (b) other financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost.  
 
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose 
of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial 
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of 
short-term profit taking. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial liabilities 
classified as held for trading are included in profit or loss. 
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Other financial liabilities pertain to issued financial instruments that are not classified or designated at 
FVPL and contain contractual obligations to deliver cash or other financial assets to the holder or to 
settle the obligation other than the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for 
a fixed number of own equity shares. After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  
 
The Bank classifies its financial liabilities as other financial liabilities. These include deposit liabilities, 
and accrued expenses and other liabilities (except for statutory liabilities). 
 
Classification of financial instruments between debt and equity 
 
Financial instruments are classified as debt or equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a 
component that is a financial liability are reported as income or expense in profit or loss. 
 
Derecognition of financial instruments 
  
Financial asset 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized when: 

 
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
• the Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to 

pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; or 
• the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a) has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 'pass-
through' arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank's 
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over 
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to pay.  
 
Financial liability 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
has expired.  
 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, 
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Offsetting of financial instruments    
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of 
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets 
and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of financial position. 
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Determination of fair value 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on their quoted market price 
or dealer price quotation (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions). When the 
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence 
of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances 
since the time of the transaction. 
 
If the financial instruments are not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined using 
appropriate valuation techniques which include recent arm’s length market transactions, net present 
value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options 
pricing models, and other relevant valuation models. 
 
Fair value hierarchy 
 
All assets and liabilities for which the fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
classified in their entirety into only one of the three levels. 
 
(a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
(b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and 
(c) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 
 
Disclosure of fair value is not required when the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair 
value. 
 
2.5 Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 
 
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, except land, are valued at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value. Land is carried at cost less any impairment 
in value. The initial cost of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment consists of its purchase 
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for 
its intended use.  
 
Additions, betterments and major replacements are capitalized while minor repairs and maintenance 
are charged to expense as incurred. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and 
related accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment loss are removed from the 
account and any resulting gain (loss) is credited (charged) to results of operations for the year.  
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
as follows: 
 

 
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if it is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount. 
 

Classification  Estimated useful life in years 

Leasehold improvements  
5 years or term of the lease, 

whichever is shorter 
Furniture and fixtures  5 years 
Transportation equipment    5 years 
IT equipment  3 years 
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The Bank's management periodically monitors the conditions of the bank premises, furniture, fixtures 
and equipment as well as the depreciation and amortization method used and the estimates on related 
useful lives to ensure that the estimates adopted represent the actual situation.  
 
An item of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the derecognition of the asset (computed as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in profit or loss in the year the item is 
derecognized. The Bank likewise assures that if any variation exists between the estimates and the 
actual scenario, it will have an immaterial effect on the financial statements.  
 
2.6 Investment properties 
 
Investment properties consist of properties acquired by the Bank in settlement of loans through 
foreclosure or dacion en pago and/or for the other reasons. They are held either to earn rental income 
or for capital appreciation or for both and are not significantly occupied by the Bank. Investment 
properties, which consist of real and other properties acquired (ROPA), such as land and building, are 
initially stated at cost, including transaction costs.  
 
The cost of the property is the carrying amount of the loan plus booked accrued interest less allowance 
for credit losses plus transaction cost incurred upon acquisition, as defined by the BSP. Provided, that 
if the carrying amount of the property exceeds P5,000,000, the appraisal of the foreclosed asset shall 
be conducted by an independent appraiser acceptable to the BSP.  
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property, except land, is stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.  
 
When an investment property is disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit 
is expected from the withdrawal, the resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.  
 
An impairment test is conducted when there is an indication that the carrying amount of the asset may 
not be recovered. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the property's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the property's fair value less cost to 
sell and value in use.  
 
2.7 Other asset 
 
Other asset is recognized when the Bank expects to receive future economic benefit from it and the 
amount can be reliably measured. 
 
2.8 Accrued expenses and other liabilities 
 
Accrued expenses are liabilities for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not 
been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the suppliers, including amounts due to employees. It is 
necessary to estimate the amount or timing of accruals; however, the uncertainty is generally much 
less than for provisions. 
 
Other liabilities are recognized in the period in which the related money, goods or services are received 
or when a legally enforced claim against the Bank is established. They are recognized initially at fair 
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
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2.9 Share capital 
 
The Bank’s ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments. Share capital is determined using the 
par value of shares that have been issued.  
 
2.10 Retained earnings  
 
Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as disclosed in the 
statements of comprehensive income and statements of changes in equity.  
 
2.11 Revenue  
 
Upon adoption of PFRS 15 beginning January 1, 2018, revenue from contracts with customers is 
recognized upon transfer of services to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the Bank expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. 
 
Following are revenues outside the scope of PFRS 15: 
 
Interest income on loans 
 
Interest income on loans is recognized in profit or loss for all financial instruments measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method.  
 
Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an 
impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future 
cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.  
 
Interest income on deposits with banks 
 
Interest income earned on bank deposits, which is presented net of tax withheld by bank, is recognized 
as the interest accrues on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield on the asset 
or EIR. 
 
Service fees 
 
Service fees relate to the administration and servicing of loans and are recognized when the service 
has been provided. 
 
Miscellaneous income 
 
Miscellaneous income relates to the processing and handling fees on loan granted and other incidental 
income, other than from usual business operations, and is recognized when the service has been 
provided.  
 
2.12 Interest expense on deposit liabilities 
 
Interest expense on deposit liabilities is recognized in profit or loss when incurred. It is calculated using 
the effective interest method and is credited to the depositors' account regularly.  
 
2.13 Expense recognition  
 
The Bank’s financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis, expenses 
are recognized when incurred and are reported in the financial statements in the periods to which they 
relate. 
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Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit related to a 
decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be reliably measured. They are 
recognized (a) on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of 
specific items of income; (b) on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when 
economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and the association with 
income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or (c) immediately when an expenditure 
produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do 
not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statement of financial position as an asset. 
 
2.14 Leases  
 
The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.  

 
Under PFRS 16, a lease exists where the contract grants the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control over the use of an identified asset for 
a period of time is conveyed when, the customer has both of the following throughout the period of 
use: 

 
i. The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset; and 
ii. The right to direct the use of the identified asset. 

 
In identifying the leases, lease and some non-lease components shall be accounted separately under 
applicable standards. 
 
Bank as a lessee 
 
For lessees, PFRS 16 removes the classification of leases as either operating or financing and requires 
that all leases be recognized on the statements of financial position, with certain exemptions allowed 
by this new standard: 

 
i. Short-term leases (twelve months or less); and 
ii. Leases where the underlying asset, in a new condition, is of low value 

 
The Bank does not recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability considering that its term on lease 
agreement is not more than 12 months. 
 
2.15 Employee benefits  
 
Short-term benefits  
 
Short-term benefits are recognized as expense in the period when the economic benefits are given. 
Unpaid benefits at the end of the financial reporting period are recognized as accrued expense while 
benefits paid in advance are recognized as prepayment to the extent that it will lead to a reduction in 
future payments.  
 
Short-term benefits given by the Bank to its employees include salaries and wages, social security 
contributions, short-term compensated absences, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits. 
 
Retirement benefits  
 
The Phil Star Development Bank, Inc. Provident Plan is non-contributory and of a defined benefit type 
which provides a retirement benefit equivalent to two months’ final salary for every year of service. 
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The regulatory benefit is paid in a lump-sum amount upon retirement. Defined benefit plan defines an 
amount of retirement benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one 
or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. 
 
Retirement benefit cost is determined using the projected unit credit method. This method reflects 
the services rendered by the employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions 
concerning employees’ projected salaries. Actuarial valuations are conducted with sufficient regularity, 
with option to accelerate when significant changes to underlying assumptions occur. The components 
of defined benefit cost include service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit liability that is 
recognized in profit or loss, and remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability that is recognized 
in OCI. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability recognized in OCI shall not be reclassified 
to profit or loss in a subsequent period.   
 
The retirement liability is the present value of the Bank’s defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the end 
of the financial reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. Retirement asset is the excess of the 
fair value of plan assets over DBO. The DBO is calculated by an independent actuary using the projected 
unit credit method. Under this method, the current service cost is the present value of retirement 
benefits payable in the future with respect to services rendered in the current year. The present value 
of the DBO is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rate on 
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that 
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related retirement obligation. 
 
Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. They are neither available 
to the creditors of the Bank nor can they be paid directly to the Bank. The fair value of plan assets is 
based on market price information. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are credited or charged to OCI in the period in which they arise. 
 
Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 
 
2.16 Provisions and contingencies  
 
Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event. It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but they are disclosed unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are 
not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
 
2.17 Income taxes 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and deferred taxes. 
 
Current tax 
 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the 
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, determined at the end of 
every quarter, subject to adjustments at the end of the period when a final adjustment return is filed 
and the corresponding annual income tax is computed and determined to be recovered or paid. 
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The tax currently payable is based on taxable income for the period. Taxable income differs from net 
income as reported in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The 
Bank’s liability for current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the financial reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable income and is 
accounted for using the liability method. 
 
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the financial reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 
is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences while deferred tax assets 
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits from excess 
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net operating loss 
carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in 
future periods against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax 
credits from excess MCIT over RCIT and unused tax losses from NOLCO can be utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each financial reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available 
in future periods to allow the benefit of all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current tax assets and current tax liabilities 
on a net basis. 
 
Current and deferred taxes are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they 
relate to items that are recognized outside profit or loss (whether in OCI or directly in equity account), 
in which case, the tax is also recognized outside profit or loss. 
 
2.18 Related parties 
 
A related party is an entity or person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, 
controls, is controlled by, or is under common or joint control with, the Bank in governing the financial 
and operating policies, or that has an interest in the Bank that gives it significant influence over the 
Bank in making financial and operating decisions. It also includes members of the key management 
personnel of the Bank or close members of their family and others, who have the ability to control, 
jointly control or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in the Bank resides 
with, directly or indirectly, any such individual. This includes parents, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, 
associates, joint ventures and post-employment benefit plan.  
 
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 
relationship, and not merely the legal form. 
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2.19 Events after the financial reporting date 
 
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Bank's position at the financial 
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that 
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.  

NOTE 3 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 
 
The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in accordance with PFRSs requires the 
Bank’s management to make judgments and estimates that affect the application of accounting 
policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent 
assets and contingent liabilities. Future events may occur which will cause the judgments and 
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in judgments and 
estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.   
 
Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. Revision to accounting estimate is recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 
 
Judgments 
 
In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

 
(a) Determining functional currency 

 
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Bank, the 
functional currency has been determined to be the Philippine Peso. 
 
The Bank considers the following factors in determining its functional currency: 

 
i. the currency that mainly influences its sale of services and the cost of providing the same; 
ii. the currency in which the funds from financing activities are generated; and 
iii. the currency in which the receipts from operating activities are usually retained. 
 

(b) Classifying financial instruments 
 

The Bank classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a 
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of 
the contractual agreement and guidelines set by PAS 32 on the definitions of a financial asset, a 
financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its 
legal form, generally governs its classification in the statement of financial position. 
 
The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities is set out in Note 4. 
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(c) Significant increase of credit risk 
 
ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL. An asset moves to the 
next stage when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. PFRS 9 does not 
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of 
an asset has significantly increased, the Bank takes into account qualitative and quantitative 
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. 
 

(d) Determining lease term  
 

Under PFRS 16, the Bank determines whether there is a need to recognize right-of-use asset and 
lease liability - on-balance sheet lease. Judgment is used in determining whether the lease terms 
will not go beyond 12 months and if it contains underlying assets of low value. In making such 
judgment, the Bank evaluates the terms and conditions of the lease arrangement. 
 

(e) Recognizing provisions and contingencies 
 

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. The 
policy on the recognition and disclosure of provisions is discussed in Note 2.16.  In 2020 and 2019, 
the Bank has determined that no contingencies will materially affect its financial statements, 
hence, no provisions are recognized. 
 

Estimates 
 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the financial reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year: 
 
(a) Estimating allowance for impairment on loans and other receivables 

 
The Bank measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and 
probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the 
time value of money and information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of 
future economic conditions. When measuring ECL, the Bank uses reasonable and supportable 
forward-looking information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of 
different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. 
 
In addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables, the Bank 
also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not specifically 
identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when originally 
granted. This level of allowance is based on the status of the accounts receivable, past collection 
experience and other factors that may affect collectibility. 
 
Allowance for impairment as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to P10,793,447 and 
P9,524,820, respectively. The carrying value of loans and other receivables as at December 31, 
2020 and 2019 amounted to P162,012,785 and P86,302,894, respectively (see Note 9). 
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(b) Estimating useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 
 

The Bank estimates the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment based on 
the period over which these assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful 
lives are reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates 
due to physical wear and tear, and technological obsolescence on the use of these assets.  In 
addition, the estimate of the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment is 
based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience 
with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially 
affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned. The 
amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these 
factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of bank premises, furniture, 
fixtures and equipment would decrease the total assets and increase recorded operating 
expenses. 

 
The net carrying value of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment amounted to 
P8,514,572 and P8,247,070 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Accumulated 
depreciation and amortization amounted to P1,487,821 and P1,455,398 as at December 31, 2020 
and 2019, respectively (see Note 10). There is no change in the estimated useful lives of these 
assets in 2020 and 2019. 

 
(c) Determining impairment of non-financial assets 
 

PFRSs require that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment indicators are 
present. Determining the fair value of non-financial assets, which requires the determination of 
future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of 
such assets, compels the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the 
financial statements. Future events could cause the Bank to conclude that a non-financial asset 
is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial 
position and results of operations of the Bank.   
 
The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant judgments and estimates.  
Though management believes that the assumptions used in estimating fair values reflected in the 
financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions 
may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss 
could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations of the Bank. 
 
No impairment loss was recognized by the Bank on bank premises, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment in 2020 and 2019 (see Note 10). 
 
Impairment loss recognized on investment properties amounted to P49,400 and nil in 2020 and 
2019, respectively (see Note 11). 

 
(d) Determining realizable amount of deferred tax assets 

 
The Bank reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each financial reporting date and 
reduces the same to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be 
available in future periods to allow the benefit of all or part of the deferred tax assets to be 
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income 
together with future tax planning strategies. 
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Estimates of future taxable income indicate that temporary differences will be realized in the 
future. Deferred tax assets recognized as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to 
P3,305,635 and P3,694,985, respectively (see Note 19). 

 
(e) Estimating retirement benefit costs 
 

The present value of DBO depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial 
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost for 
retirement include, among others, the discount rate and salary increase rate. Any changes in the 
assumptions will have an impact on the carrying amount of the retirement obligation.  

 
The Bank determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each financial reporting period. 
This is the interest rate that is used to determine the present value of estimated future cash 
outflows expected to be required to settle the retirement obligation. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the Bank considers the interest rate on government bonds that are 
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity 
approximating to the terms of the related retirement obligation. 

 
Other key assumptions for retirement obligation are based in part on current market conditions. 
The actuarial assumptions used in the determination of provision for retirement benefit cost are 
shown in Note 18.  While the Bank believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, 
significant differences between actual experiences and assumptions may materially affect the 
cost of employee benefits and related obligations. 

 
Retirement benefit cost recognized in profit or loss in 2020 and 2019 amounted to P180,375 and 
P177,088, respectively (see Notes 16 and 18).  
 
Retirement asset recognized as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to P282,822 and 
P812,829, respectively (see Note 18). 

 
NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Bank as at December 31 are as follows: 
 
 2020  2019 
Financial assets at amortized cost    

  Cash and other cash items (Note 5) P610,109  P730,043 
  Due from BSP (Note 6) 2,456,979  1,650,982 
  Due from other banks (Note 7) 28,995,985  87,021,762 
  Financial assets at amortized cost (Note 8) 15,041,463  19,438,514 
  Loans and other receivables, net (Note 9) 162,012,785  86,302,894 
  Other assets (Note 12) 6,000  6,000 
 P209,123,321  P195,150,195 
    
Financial liabilities at amortized cost    

  Deposit liabilities (Note 13) P28,965,467  P20,246,486 
   Accrued expenses and other liabilities* (Note 14) 1,905,650  1,838,129 
 P30,871,117  P22,084,615 
 
*excluding statutory liabilities 
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The above carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are carried at amortized 
cost, are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their relatively short-term maturities and 
their being subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 
 
Financial risk management 
 
The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely (a) credit risk, (b) liquidity risk, and 
(c) interest rate risk. 
 
Similar to all other businesses, the Bank is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial 
instruments.  This note describes the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks 
and the methods used to measure them. Further, quantitative information in respect of these risks is 
presented throughout these financial statements. 
 
There have been no significant changes to the Bank’s exposure to financial instrument risks, its 
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from 
previous periods unless otherwise stated in this note. 
 
General objectives, policies and processes  
 
The BOD has overall responsibility for the Bank’s financial risk management, which includes 
establishment and approval of risk strategies, policies and limits. The main objective of the financial 
risk management is to minimize the adverse impact of financial risks on the Bank’s financial 
performance and financial position due to the unpredictability of financial markets. 
 
The main risks arising from the Bank’s use of financial instruments are summarized as follows: 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 
 
The Bank employs sound credit policies that are in accordance with external regulations and are 
attuned with the prevailing business conditions and lending priorities of the Bank. Credits are 
judiciously identified and evaluated to ensure that risks are properly addressed. The Bank sets limits 
for individual borrowers. The Bank also monitors credit exposures and continually assesses the   
creditworthiness of counterparties. Credit policies and procedures are implemented through the 
Bank’s Credit Committee.  
 
The Bank grants loans on the basis of financial strength and payment history of borrowers. Strong 
collaterals are likewise obtained to further mitigate credit risk. Loanable amount should not exceed 
60% of the appraised value of the collateral. An independent unit in the Bank validates property 
appraisal, title verification, credit investigation and credit evaluation. Insurance cover and assignment 
of the insurance policies in favor of the Bank is required on these assets. Further, the Bank requires 
that the borrowers themselves be insured and the insurance policies assigned in favor of the Bank. 
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Bank.  
 
The Bank does not enter into derivatives to manage credit risk, although in certain isolated cases may 
take steps to mitigate such risks if it is sufficiently concentrated.  
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Quantitative disclosures of the credit risk exposure in relation to financial assets are set out below.  
The Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements as at 
December 31 is as follows: 
 
 2020  2019 
Due from BSP (Note 6) P2,456,979  P1,650,982 
Due from other banks (Note 7) 28,995,985  87,021,762 
Financial assets at amortized cost (Note 8) 15,041,463  19,438,514 
Loans and other receivables, net (Note 9) 162,012,785  86,302,894 
Other asset (Note 12) 1,000  1,000 
 P208,508,212  P194,415,152 
 
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure 
 
An analysis of concentration of credit risk by industry at the financial reporting date based on the 
carrying amount (gross of unearned discount and allowance for impairment) of the assets is shown 
below: 

 

 

 2020 

 

Loans and other 
receivables  

(Note 9) 

Due from other 
banks and BSP  
(Notes 6 and 7) 

Financial assets at 
amortized cost 

(Note 8) Total 

Wholesale and retail trade P74,419,692 P- P- P74,419,692 

Financial intermediaries - 31,452,964 15,041,463 46,494,427 

Manufacturing 43,310,000 - - 43,310,000 

Agriculture, hunting and forestry 28,856,148 - - 28,856,148 

Construction 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 

Transportation and storage  5,265,718 - - 5,265,718 

Real estate activities 5,156,338 - - 5,156,338 

Other community, social and      

personal service activities    1,662,340 - - 1,662,340 

Professional scientific and personal      

service activities 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 

Education 1,041,250 - - 1,041,250 

Other service activities 5,562,100 - - 5,562,100 

 P175,773,586 P31,452,964 P15,041,463 P222,268,013 

 2019 

 

Loans and other 
receivables  

(Note 9) 

Due from other 
banks and BSP  
(Notes 6 and 7) 

Financial assets at 
amortized cost 

(Note 8) Total 

Financial intermediaries P- P88,672,744 P19,438,514 P108,111,258 

Wholesale and retail trade 45,044,527 - - 45,044,527 

Manufacturing 23,310,000 - - 23,310,000 

Agriculture, forestry and fishing 8,003,759 - - 8,003,759 

Construction 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 

Real estate activities 4,288,996 - - 4,288,996 

Education 2,499,000 - - 2,499,000 

Transportation and storage 1,610,000 - - 1,610,000 

Other service activities 5,221,909 - - 5,221,909 

Other community, social and      

personal service activities    2,091,049 - - 2,091,049 

 P97,069,240 P88,672,744 P19,438,514 P205,180,498 
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Loans are impaired if there is an objective evidence of impairment such as default or delinquency by a 
borrower, restructuring of a loan in terms that the Bank would not otherwise consider, indications that 
a borrower will enter bankruptcy, or adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers.  
 
The Bank conducts impairment assessment annually following its criteria for impairment and guided 
by the loan classification set by the BSP.  
 
The analyses of classification of financial assets (gross of allowance for impairment and unearned 
discount) as at December 31 are as follows:   
 

 2020 

 

Total 

Neither past 
due nor 

impaired 
Past due but 
not impaired Impaired  

Due from BSP P2,456,979 P2,456,979 P- P- 
Due from other banks 28,995,985 28,995,985 - - 
Loans and other receivables 175,869,184 167,133,314 - 8,735,870 
Financial assets at amortized cost 15,041,463 15,041,463 - - 
Other asset  1,000 1,000 - - 
 222,364,611 213,628,741 - 8,735,870 
Allowance for impairment  10,793,447 2,687,228 - 8,106,219 

  P211,571,164 P210,941,513 P- P629,651 
 

 2019 

 

Total 

Neither past 
due nor 

impaired 
Past due but 
not impaired Impaired  

Due from BSP P1,650,982 P1,650,982 P- P- 
Due from other banks 87,021,762 87,021,762 - - 
Loans and other receivables 97,265,505 85,439,905 - 11,825,600 
Financial assets at amortized cost 19,438,514 19,438,514 - - 
Other asset  1,000 1,000 - - 
 205,377,763 193,552,163 - 11,825,600 
Allowance for impairment  9,524,820 1,100,634 - 8,424,186 

  P195,852,943 P192,451,529 P- P3,401,414 
 
The loans and other receivables are substantially secured by adequate amount of collateral mainly 
consisting of the real estate mortgage and hold-out deposits as well as personal and corporate 
guarantees at various terms from less than a year up to five years.  
 
The market value of these collaterals amounted to P303,241,139 and P261,778,445 as at                 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
 
The credit quality of the Bank's financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is considered to 
be of good quality and expected to be collectible without incurring any credit losses more than 1% of 
its outstanding balance.  
 
In 2017, the Bank obtained a real estate property by taking possession of collateral held as security 
amounting to P5,620,000. Out of this amount, two properties amounting to P1,376,946 and P510,066 
were sold in 2018 and 2017, respectively.  Remaining account amounting to P3,732,988 is classified as 
investment property as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. 
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Liquidity risk   
 
Liquidity risk arises from the Bank's management of working capital and the finance charges and 
principal repayments on its debt instruments. It is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in 
meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.  
 
The Bank seeks to manage its liquid funds through cash planning. The Bank uses historical figures and 
experiences and forecasts from its collections and disbursements. Also, the Bank only places in the 
money market funds which exceed the Bank's normal operating requirements. Placements made are 
strictly based on cash planning assumptions and cover only a short period of time. Additionally, a 
regular monitoring of legal reserve requirements against deposits is being done. 
 
The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash 
flows) of financial liabilities: 
 

 2020 
 Total < 3 months 3-12 months > 1 year 

Deposit liabilities (Note 13) P28,965,467 P16,375,348 P9,190,321 P3,399,798 
Accrued expenses and other  
     liabilities (Note 14) 1,905,650 1,894,969 - 10,681 

 P30,871,117 P18,270,317 P9,190,321 P3,410,479 
Assets held for managing 

liquidity risk (Notes 5, 6 and 7) P32,063,073 P26,563,073 P5,500,000 P- 
 

 2019 
 Total < 3 months 3-12 months > 1 year 

Deposit liabilities (Note 13) P20,246,486 P8,830,250 P8,166,438 P3,249,798 
Accrued expenses and other  
     liabilities (Note 14) 1,838,129 1,827,448 - 10,681 

 P22,084,615 P10,657,698 P8,166,438 P3,260,479 
Assets held for managing 

liquidity risk (Notes 5, 6 and 7) P89,402,787 P89,402,787 P- P- 

 
The Bank’s minimum liquidity ratio as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 is 191.85% and 703.31%, 
respectively, as reported to the BSP.   
 
Capital management 
 
The primary objective of the Bank's capital management is to ensure the ability of the Bank to continue 
as a going concern; to maintain a strong credit rating and quality ratios; to ensure compliance with the 
BSP regulations; and to provide returns and benefits to its shareholders. The President, as authorized 
by the BOD, has overall responsibility for monitoring the capital structure of the Bank and making the 
necessary adjustment to address the risk and adapt to changes in economic conditions and regulatory 
requirements.  
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Details of the Bank’s capital as reported to the BSP are as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Tier 1 (core) capital      

Paid-up capital (Note 15) P180,600,100  P180,600,100 
Retained earnings 35,864,344  31,091,178 
Deferred tax asset (3,694,986)  (4,477,363) 

  212,769,458  207,213,915 
Tier 2 (supplementary) capital    

General loan loss provision 1,679,009  846,486 
Total regulatory capital  P214,448,467  P208,060,401 
 
Risk-weighted assets  P247,110,084  P228,325,766 
Tier 1 ratio 86.10%  90.75% 
Risk-based capital adequacy (base) ratio (CAR) 86.78%  91.12% 
 
The Bank is regulated by the BSP and is subject to a minimum capitalization of P200 million. 
 
The Bank has exceeded the minimum risk-based CAR, expressed as a percentage of qualifying capital 
to risk-weighted assets, of not less than 10% as required by the BSP.  
 
Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in interest rate. 
 
To assure a fair margin of profitability, the Bank keeps a reasonable spread between interest rate on 
loans and interest rates on deposit liabilities and borrowings. Fluctuation in interest rates has no 
material effect on the account since the rates are fixed and pre-determined at the inception of the 
contract. 
 
The Bank's financial assets earn fixed interest and the financial liabilities carry fixed interest. 
 
Net interest gap  
 
The following shows the maturity profile of interest-bearing financial instruments as at December 31: 
 

 2020 
 Total On demand < 3 months 3-12 months > 1 year 
Due from other banks 

(Note 7) P28,995,985 P21,995,985 P1,500,000 P5,500,000 P- 
Financial assets at 

amortized cost 
(Note 8) 15,041,463 - - 2,526,198 12,515,265 

Loans and other   
   receivables (Note 9) 175,773,586 - 61,104,046 99,841,234 14,828,306 

  P219,811,034 P21,995,985 P62,604,046 P107,867,432 P27,343,571 
Deposit liabilities  
   (Note 13) P28,965,467 P16,375,348 P- P9,190,321 P3,399,798 
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 2019 
 Total On demand < 3 months 3-12 months > 1 year 
Due from other banks 

(Note 7) P87,021,762 P24,377,068 P56,144,694 P6,500,000 P- 
Financial assets at 

amortized cost 
   (Note 8) 19,438,514 - - 4,578,141 14,860,373 
Loans and other   
   receivables (Note 9) 97,069,240 - 15,005,441 47,065,440 34,998,359 

  P203,529,516 P24,377,068 P71,150,135 P58,143,581 P49,858,732 
Deposit liabilities 

(Note 13) P20,246,486 P8,830,250 P- P8,166,438 P3,249,798 

 
NOTE 5 - CASH AND OTHER CASH ITEMS 
 
Cash and other cash items consist of checks and other cash items received after the Bank's clearing 
cut-off time until the close of the regular banking hours amounting to P610,109 and P730,043 as at 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
 
NOTE 6 - DUE FROM BANGKO SENTRAL NG PILIPINAS 
 
The account consists of local currency deposits maintained with the BSP to meet legal reserve 
requirement amounting to P2,456,979 and P1,650,982 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively.  The portion of this account that is used as a statutory reserve amounted to P868,964 and 
P809,859 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 13). 
 
NOTE 7 - DUE FROM OTHER BANKS 
 
This account pertains to funds and other deposits maintained with banks in local currency, primarily 
to facilitate check or draft or other similar payment order collections and other banking services.  
 
The account at December 31 consists of: 
 
    2020  2019 
Savings deposits   P21,995,985  P24,377,068 
Time deposits   7,000,000  62,644,694 
   P28,995,985  P87,021,762 
 
The bank deposits earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income amounted to 
P708,990 and P1,014,210 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  Interest received amounted to P865,321 and 
P1,187,426 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.   
 
NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST 
 
In January 2019, the Bank invested in agrarian reform bonds issued by the government with an original 
face value of P12,412,258. The discounted price of the investment amounted to P9,913,165. An 
additional investment was approved by the BOD in August 2019 with face value and discounted price 
of P10,000,000 and P9,950,486, respectively.  The Bank receives one-tenth of the face value annually 
on its anniversary dates which commence one year from the date of issue until the principal sum is 
fully paid. 
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Details of the investments are as follows: 
 

Serial number Original issue date Maturity date Discounted price Interest rate 
AR-0253256 September 11, 2013 September 11, 2023               P317,687  1.30% 
AR-0253257 November 13, 2013 November 13, 2023               591,126  1.55% 
AR-0253258 February 18, 2014 February 18, 2024                 32,193  1.00% 
AR-0253259 March 12, 2014 March 12, 2024                    8,262  1.07% 
AR-0253260 October 7, 2014 October 7, 2024               210,743  1.13% 
AR-0253261 February 15, 2016 February 15, 2026                 16,105  0.73% 
AR-0253262 August 25, 2016 August 25, 2026                 89,273  0.71% 
AR-0253263 September 6, 2016 September 6, 2026               432,960  0.73% 
AR-0253264 September 28, 2016 September 28, 2026           1,411,396  0.77% 
AR-0253265 October 5, 2016 October 5, 2026               586,896  0.78% 
AR-0253266 October 12, 2016 October 12, 2026               395,300  0.79% 
AR-0253267 October 24, 2016 October 24, 2026                 88,461  0.81% 
AR-0253268 January 12, 2017 January 12, 2027               104,568  0.59% 
AR-0253269 May 2, 2017 May 2, 2027                 86,365  0.77% 
AR-0253273 May 30, 2017 May 30, 2027           1,397,634  0.82% 
AR-0253274 June 13, 2017 June 13, 2027               139,179  0.85% 
AR-0253275 September 11, 2017 September 11, 2027               592,688  0.69% 
AR-0253276 January 19, 2018 January 19, 2028               224,264  0.27% 
AR-0253277 February 5, 2018 February 5, 2028               100,654  0.28% 
AR-0253278 June 5, 2018 June 5, 2028           2,246,773  0.38% 
AR-0253279 July 5, 2018 July 5, 2028               840,638  0.42% 
AR-0256882 December 29, 2016 December 29, 2026      9,950,486 0.47% 

          P19,863,651  
 

Movements of the account are as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Balance at January 1  P19,438,514  P- 
Acquisition at discounted price  -  19,863,651 
Amortization of discount  181,090  49,118 
Redeemed   (4,578,141)  (474,255) 
Balance at December 31  P15,041,463  P19,438,514 
 
Interest earned amounted to P871,612 in 2020 and P240,524 in 2019.  Interest received amounted to 
P690,522 and P191,406 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.   
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NOTE 9 - LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 
The details of the account as at December 31 are presented below. 
 
   2020  2019 
Current  P168,338,239  P85,308,947 
Past due   7,394,099  11,719,045 
Items in litigation   41,248  41,248 
  175,773,586  97,069,240 
Unearned discount  (3,062,952)  (1,437,791) 
  172,710,634  95,631,449 
Allowance for impairment   (10,777,924)  (9,509,297) 
  161,932,710  86,122,152 
     
Accounts receivable   15,523  15,523 
Allowance for impairment   (15,523)  (15,523) 
   -  - 
     
Advances to officers and employees  55,664  - 
Accrued interest income from financial assets   24,411  180,742 
   P162,012,785  P86,302,894 
 
The major classifications of loans as at December 31 are presented below. 
 
(a) As to collateral 
 

   2020  2019 
Secured loans      

Real estate mortgage  P41,912,051  P33,491,360 
Other collateral  106,880,342  58,611,275 

Unsecured loans   26,981,193  4,966,605 
   P175,773,586  P97,069,240 

 
Loans which are secured by real estate mortgages have terms ranging from less than one year to five 
years, and with annual interest rates ranging from 7% to 24% in 2020 and 2019. Loans which are 
secured by other collateral have terms ranging from one year to five years, and with annual interest 
rates ranging from 7% to 10% in 2020 and 2019.    
 
Unsecured loans have terms of less than one year with annual interest rates ranging from 7.5% to 26% 
in 2020 and 2019.  
 
The Bank has loans receivable from its related parties amounting to P3,990,427 and P2,788,996 in 2020 
and 2019, respectively (see Note 20). 
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(b) As to concentration by industry 
 

  2020  2019 

 Amount %  Amount % 
Wholesale and retail trade P74,419,692 42.34  P45,044,527 46.40 
Manufacturing 43,310,000 24.64  23,310,000 24.01 
Agriculture, hunting and forestry  28,856,148 16.42  8,003,759 8.25 
Construction 9,000,000 5.12  5,000,000 5.15 
Transportation and storage 5,265,718 3.00  1,610,000 1.66 
Real estate activities 5,156,338 2.93  4,288,996 4.42 
Other community, social and personal       
      service activities  1,662,340 0.95  2,091,049 2.15 
Professional scientific and personal      

service activities 1,500,000 0.85  - - 
Education 1,041,250 0.59  2,499,000 2.57 
Other service activities  5,562,100 3.16  5,221,909 5.39 
  P175,773,586 100.00  P97,069,240 100.00 

 
The BSP considers that credit concentration exists when loan exposure to a particular industry or 
economic sector exceeds 30% of total loan portfolio. The Bank has undue concentration of credit in 
wholesale and retail trade in 2020 and 2019.  
 
(c) As to maturity 

 
   2020  2019 

Due less than 1 year   P160,945,280  P62,167,007 
Due beyond 1 year     
     More than 1 year but less than 5 years  14,828,306  34,902,233 
   P175,773,586  P97,069,240 

 
Non-performing accounts represent approximately 4.23% and 12.12% of the loan portfolio as at 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
 
Under BSP Circular No. 351, banks that have no unbooked valuation reserves and capital adjustments 
are allowed to exclude from non-performing classification those loans classified as "loss" in the latest 
BSP examination which are fully covered by allowance for impairment losses provided that interest on 
said loans shall not be accrued. The amount of non-performing loans (NPLs) as at December 31, 2020 
and 2019 is P7,435,347 and P11,760,293, respectively.  
 
NPLs refer to loans whose principal and/or interest are unpaid for more than 90 days from contractual 
due date, or accrued interest for more than 90 days has been capitalized, refinanced or delayed by 
agreement. 
 
For loans collectible in lump sum and in quarterly, semi-annual, or annual installments, the total 
outstanding balance of such loans shall be considered non-performing when one principal installment 
or interest amortization is unpaid for 30 days.  
 
In the case of loans that are collectible in monthly installments, the total outstanding balance thereof 
shall be considered non-performing when three or more principal installments or interest 
amortizations are in arrears.  
 
Restructured loans, which do not meet the requirements to be treated as performing loans, shall also 
be considered as NPLs.  
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Loans are classified as non-performing in accordance with BSP regulations, or when, in the opinion of 
management, collection of interest or principal is doubtful. Loans are not reclassified as performing 
until interest and principal payments are brought current or the loans are restructured in accordance 
with existing BSP regulations and future payments appear to be assured. 
  
The Bank carries effective loan interest rates at December 31, 2020 and 2019 as follows: 
 
Short term   7% - 26%   
Long term   7% - 24% 

   
Interest earned on loans amounted to P12,375,754 and P5,977,697 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
Interest received amounted to P14,000,915 and P6,671,559 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
 
The changes in the allowance for impairment as at December 31 are presented below. 
 
    2020   

 
Loans  

receivable  
Accounts 

receivable  Total  
Balance at January 1 P9,509,297 P15,523 P9,524,820 
Provision for impairment loss  1,268,627 - 1,268,627 
Balance at December 31 P10,777,924 P15,523 P10,793,447 

    
 2019 

 
Loans  

receivable 
Accounts 

receivable  Total  
Balance at January 1 P9,482,646 P20,000 P9,502,646 
Provision for impairment loss  22,174 - 22,174 
Reclassification 4,477 (4,477) - 
Balance at December 31 P9,509,297 P15,523 P9,524,820 
 
The Bank believes that the current allowance for impairment is sufficient to absorb credit risk arising 
from non-collection or non-realization of loans and other receivables.  
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NOTE 10 - BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT 
 
The details and movements of the account are as follows: 
 

 
Furniture 

and fixtures  
IT 

equipment 
Transportation 

equipment  
Leasehold 

improvements Land  Total  
Cost        
At January 1, 2020 P510,231 P432,363 P317,600 P233,274 P8,209,000 P9,702,468 
Additions 102,450 106,470 - 132,500 - 341,420 
Retirement (28,350) (3,650) - - - (32,000) 
Disposal   (9,495) - - - - (9,495) 
At December 31, 2020 574,836 535,183 317,600 365,774 8,209,000 10,002,393 
       
Accumulated depreciation and amortization     
At January 1, 2020 509,401 400,350 312,374 233,273 - 1,455,398 
Provisions (Note 16) 4,505 51,174 3,300 14,933 - 73,912 
Retirement (28,350) (3,650) - - - (32,000) 
Disposal  (9,489) - - - - (9,489) 
At December 31, 2020 476,067 447,874 315,674 248,206 - 1,487,821 
       
Net carrying value 
At December 31, 2020 P98,769 P87,309 P1,926 P117,568 P8,209,000 P8,514,572 

      

 
Furniture 

and fixtures  
IT 

equipment 
Transportation 

equipment  
Leasehold 

improvements Land  Total  
Cost        
At January 1, 2019 P515,335 P421,099 P323,655 P1,151,692 P8,209,000 P10,620,781 
Additions - 11,264 6,600 - - 17,864 
Reclassification  5 - (5) - - - 
Retirement   (5,109) - (12,650) (918,418) - (936,177) 
At December 31, 2019 510,231 432,363 317,600 233,274 8,209,000 9,702,468 
       
Accumulated depreciation and amortization     
At January 1, 2019 505,259 325,697 323,122 1,151,691 - 2,305,769 
Provisions (Note 16) 9,251 74,653 1,902 - - 85,806 
Retirement  (5,109) - (12,650) (918,418) - (936,177) 
At December 31, 2019 509,401 400,350 312,374 233,273 - 1,455,398 
       
Net carrying value 
At December 31, 2019 P830 P32,013 P5,226 P1 P8,209,000 P8,247,070 

 
The management assesses the bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment of the Bank for 
impairment at reporting date. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the management has seen no 
condition of impairment and that the net carrying amount of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment can be recovered through use in operations. 
 
The Bank sold fully-depreciated furniture and fixtures with cost of P9,495 for P500 resulting in a gain 
of P494. The gain is presented in the statements of comprehensive income under miscellaneous 
income. 
 
 
 
 
 



33 

NOTE 11 - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 
Investment properties include ROPAs obtained by the Bank in settlement of loans or dacion en pago. 
 
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the investment properties, comprised of various lots, amounted 
to P24,821,930 and P24,871,330, respectively. 
 
The movements of the account are summarized below: 
 
   2020  2019 
Balance at January 1   P24,871,330  P33,888,617 
Provision for impairment loss  (49,400)  - 
Additional charges to old accounts  -  548,755 
Disposal   -  (9,566,042) 
Balance at December 31  P24,821,930  P24,871,330 
 
The aggregate fair value of the investment properties of the Bank amounted to P108,501,823 and 
P108,403,773 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
 
The fair value of the investment properties has been determined by an in-house and independent 
appraiser on the basis of market value approach.  
 
In 2019, the Bank sold ROPAs with total carrying value of P9,566,042 at a gain of P6,533,958. The gain 
is presented in the statements of comprehensive income under miscellaneous income. 
 
The additional charges to old accounts in 2019 amounting to P548,755 are consolidation-related 
expenses capitalized by the Bank. 
 
NOTE 12 - OTHER ASSETS 
 
The account at December 31 consists of: 
 
   2020  2019 
Deferred charges   P363,515  P363,515 
Intangible assets  46,250  39,583 
Stationery and supplies on hand  42,665  46,811 
Prepaid expenses   20,798  9,020 
Petty cash fund  5,000  5,000 
Deposit for safety deposit box  1,000  1,000 
PLDT share  375  375 
Miscellaneous  18,236  - 
  P497,839  P465,304 
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Movements of intangible assets are as follows: 
 
 2020  2019 
Cost    
   Balance at January 1 P340,000  P340,000 
   Addition 40,000  - 
   Balance at December 31 380,000  340,000 
    
Accumulated amortization     
   Balance at January 1 300,417  210,417 
   Amortization (Note 16) 33,333  90,000 
   Balance at December 31 333,750  300,417 
    
Net P46,250  P39,583 
 
NOTE 13 - DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 
 
The breakdown of the account is as follows: 
 
   2020  2019 
Savings   P16,375,347  P8,830,250 
Time   12,590,120  11,416,236 
   P28,965,467  P20,246,486 
 
Regular savings deposits are subject to an annual interest rate of 0.5% since October 1, 2015. 
 
Annual interest rates on time deposits as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 
 

Peso category  90 days  180 days  360 days  2 years and above  
20,000 - 250,000  1.00% 1.25% 1.75% 2.00% 
250,001 - 500,000  1.25% 1.50% 2.00% 2.75% 
500,001 - 1,000,000   1.50% 1.75% 2.25% 3.00% 
1,000,001- 1,500,000  1.75% 2.00% 2.50% 3.25% 
1,500,001 - above 2.00% 2.25% 2.75% 3.50% 
 
Breakdown of interest expense on deposit liabilities is as follows: 
 
 2020  2019 
Savings P67,515  P66,140 
Time deposit 229,019  250,540 
 P296,534  P316,680 
 
Interest paid amounted to P266,256 and P452,500 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.   
 
Under BSP Circular No. 1092 and 1063, the deposit liabilities of the Bank are subject to liquidity reserve 
computed at 3% and 4%, respectively, for demand, savings and time deposits amounting to P868,964 
and P809,859 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is maintained by the Bank in the 
reserve deposit account with the BSP (see Note 6). 
 
 
 
 
 



35 

NOTE 14 - ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 
 
The account at December 31 consists of: 
 
   2020  2019 
Accounts payable   P1,063,000  P1,123,500 
Accrued expenses  748,956  651,213 
Statutory liabilities   340,575  299,198 
Accrued interest payable   83,013  52,735 
Due to the Treasurer of the Philippines   10,681  10,681 
   P2,246,225  P2,137,327 
 
Accounts payable is comprised mainly of the P1 million deposit for the impending sale of ROPA.  
 
Accrued expenses include accrual of gross receipts tax for the last quarter, professional fees and 
Naujan property sale-related expenses. 
 
NOTE 15 - EQUITY 
 
The Bank's share capital consists of: 
 
 2020  2019 

 
No. of 
shares 

 
Amount 

 No. of 
shares 

 
 Amount 

Authorized common shares at P100   
par value per share 5,000,000 

 

P500,000,000 

 
 
 5,000,000 

 
 
 P500,000,000 

 
Paid-up capital - at P100 par value 

per share         
Subscribed share capital        

Balance at January 1 2,000,000  P200,000,000  724,890  P72,489,000 
Issuance of shares through 

application of deposit for 
future stock subscription -  -  275,110  27,511,000 
Subscriptions during the year -  -  1,000,000  100,000,000 

Balance at December 31  2,000,000  200,000,000  2,000,000  200,000,000 
Subscriptions receivable   (19,399,900)    (19,399,900) 
Paid-up capital   P180,600,100    P180,600,100 

        
Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank's compliance with regulatory 
requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Bank's adjusted net worth reported to the BSP, 
determined based on existing BSP regulatory and accounting frameworks. The risk-based CAR of the 
Bank as reported to the BSP is 86.78% and 91.12% as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  
 
The BSP issued on October 23, 2018 a certificate of authority approving the increase of authorized 
capital stock of the Bank from P100,000,000 to P500,000,000, divided by 5,000,000 shares of common 
stock with voting rights at par value of P100 each. Thereafter, an application for the said increase of 
authorized capital stock was filed with the SEC on December 4, 2018. Additional subscription of 
P27,511,000 was received from the stockholders and was presented as “Deposit for future stock 
subscription” in the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017.  Following the aforesaid 
approval of the BSP and the submission of the application with the SEC, in 2018, the deposit for future 
stock subscription was recognized as part of the Bank’s equity.  On July 12, 2019, the SEC approved the 
said increase of authorized capital stock. 
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NOTE 16 - OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
Details of the following accounts follow:   
 

  2020  2019 
Compensation and other benefits     
Salaries and wages  P3,059,479  P2,986,873 
Employee benefits    1,063,638  1,262,056 
SSS, Philhealth and HDMF contributions  271,198  252,727 
Retirement benefit cost (Note 18)  180,375  177,088 
               P4,574,690  P4,678,744 
 
Other expenses     
Management and professional fees  P659,611  P665,429 
Rent (Note 17)   541,000  540,250 
Directors' fees   420,000  415,000 
Security, clerical and janitorial services  183,858  192,373 
Power, light and water   111,345  125,820 
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 10 and 12)   107,245  175,806 
Insurance   84,048  97,106 
Postage, telephone, cables and telegrams  72,793  80,056 
Documentary stamps used  70,082  1,100,463 
Representation and entertainment  55,134  52,738 
Donations and charitable contributions  55,000  - 
Supervision fees   42,203  21,064 
Repairs and maintenance   39,819  51,557 
Litigation/assets-acquired expenses  32,342  31,730 
Advertising and publicity  23,517  8,500 
Travelling   22,669  34,757 
Stationery and supplies   20,603  28,798 
Fuel and lubricants  13,982  20,176 
Miscellaneous expenses  398,067  303,420 
  P2,953,318  P3,945,043 

  
Miscellaneous expenses include cash gift/assistance and meals provided to the employees, sanitation 
and other incidental business expenses of the Bank. 
 
NOTE 17 - LEASES 
 
The Bank leases its office space from a related party which started on February 1, 2016 at a monthly 
rental of P52,500, inclusive of Value-Added Tax (VAT).   
 
On June 1, 2017, a new contract of lease was signed to effect the change of monthly rental of P45,000, 
inclusive of VAT, for the period June 1, 2017 to May 31, 2018. This contract was further renewed for 
another year. The latest renewal with the same terms and conditions is for a period of one year from 
June 1, 2020 to May 31, 2021.  
 
Should the Bank desire to renew, extend and/or pre-terminate the lease agreement, written notice 
thereof must be given to the lessor at least sixty days prior to the expiration and/or pre-termination of 
the lease with terms and condition subject to mutual agreement.   
 
Rent expense related to the above lease amounted to P540,000 in 2020 and 2019. The rent expense 
of P541,000 and P540,250 in 2020 and 2019, respectively, includes vault rental payments. 
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NOTE 18 - RETIREMENT BENEFIT COST 
 
The Bank has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit plan covering all of its regular officers and 
employees. The latest actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuarial consulting firm on 
the Bank’s retirement benefit cost and DBO is as of December 31, 2020. The following data summarize 
the results of the said valuation: 
 
Characteristics of the defined benefit plan and the associated risks  
 
The plan provides a retirement benefit equivalent to two months’ final salary for every year of service. 
The benefit is paid in lump sum upon retirement or separation in accordance with the terms of the 
plan.  
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) Regulations No. 1-68 for 
formal, tax-qualified retirement plans, it is required, among others, that a formal retirement plan be 
administered by a trust (trusteed); that forfeitures arising for any reason shall not be applied to 
increase the benefits under the plan but shall instead be retained in the retirement fund and be used 
as soon as possible to reduce the Bank's future contribution; and that the corpus or income of the 
retirement fund must at no time be used for, or diverted to, any purpose other than for the exclusive 
benefit of the plan members (non-diversion of funds).  
 
The retirement plan trustee, as appointed by the Bank in the trust agreement executed between the 
Bank and the duly-appointed retirement plan trustee, is responsible for the general administration of 
the retirement plan and the management of the retirement fund. The retirement plan trustee may 
seek the advice of counsel and appoint an investment manager or managers to manage the retirement 
fund, an independent accountant to audit the fund and an actuary to value the retirement fund. As the 
administrator of the retirement plan, the retirement plan trustee (rather than the Bank) is responsible 
for the ultimate control, disposition, or management of the money received or contributed.  
 
There are no unusual or significant risks to which the plan exposes the Bank. However, in the event a 
benefit claim arises under the retirement plan and the retirement fund is not sufficient to pay the 
benefit, the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be due and payable from the Bank to the 
retirement fund.  
 
There was no plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement recognized in 2020 and 2019. 
 
Amounts recognized in the financial statements 
 
The valuation results are based on the employee data as of the valuation dates as provided by the 
Bank.  
 
The principal assumptions used in determining the retirement benefit obligations for the Bank's 
retirement benefit plan are shown below. 
 
  2020  2019 
Discount rate 3.69%  5.03% 
Salary increase rate 5%  5% 
Mortality rate 
 

The 2001 CSO Table - Generational 
(Scale AA, Society of Actuaries) 

Disability rate 
 

The Disability Study, Period 2  
Benefit 5 (Society of Actuaries) 
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The changes in the present value of the DBO are as follows: 
 

  2020  2019 
Present value of DBO at January 1  P2,364,793  P2,299,623 
Interest cost  118,949  131,079 
Current service cost  221,261  212,009 
Actuarial loss - changes in financial assumptions 291,649  115,530 
Actuarial gain - changes in demographic assumptions  -  (994,560) 
Actuarial loss - experience  36,984  601,112 
Present value of DBO at December 31 P3,033,636  P2,364,793 
 
The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 P3,282,596  P2,637,788 
Interest income  165,115  166,000 
Contributions  -  549,000 
Remeasurement loss  (119,633)  (70,192) 
Fair value of plan assets at December 31  P3,328,078  P3,282,596 
 
Actual return on plan assets follows: 
 
   2020  2019 
Interest income   P165,115  P166,000 
Remeasurement loss  (119,633)  (70,192) 
Actual return    P45,482  P95,808 
 
Asset ceiling follows:   
 
   2020  2019 
Present value of reductions in future contributions   P282,822  P812,829 
Asset ceiling limit   282,822  812,829 
 
Retirement asset recognized in the statements of financial position as at December 31 follows: 
 
   2020  2019 
Present value of DBO at December 31   P3,033,636  P2,364,793 
Fair value of plan assets at December 31   (3,328,078)  (3,282,596) 
Funded status - surplus  (294,442)  (917,803) 
Effect of the asset ceiling   11,620  104,974 
Retirement asset   (P282,822)  (P812,829) 
 
Retirement benefit cost recognized in profit or loss is as follows:  
 
   2020  2019 
Current service cost   P221,261  P212,009 
Interest cost on DBO   118,949  131,079 
Interest income on plan assets   (165,115)  (166,000) 
Interest on the effect of the asset ceiling  5,280  - 
Net interest on the defined benefit liability  (40,886)  (34,921) 
Retirement benefit cost in profit or loss (Note 16)   P180,375  P177,088 
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Defined benefit cost in OCI is as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Accumulated OCI at January 1 P273,340  P376,092 
Actuarial gains - DBO  328,633  (277,918) 
Remeasurement loss - plan assets 119,633  70,192 
Remeasurement (gain) loss - changes in the effect     

of the asset ceiling (98,634)  104,974 
Defined benefit cost in OCI - expense (income) 349,632  (102,752) 
Accumulated OCI at December 31  P622,972  P273,340 
 
The defined benefit cost (income) in OCI, net of tax amounted to P244,742 and (P71,926) in 2020 and 
2019, respectively.  The accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax is P436,080 and P191,338 
as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.   
 
Movements in retirement asset as at December 31 are as follows: 
 
  2020  2019 
Retirement asset at January 1  (P812,829)  (P338,165) 
Defined benefit cost recognized in profit or loss  180,375  177,088 
Defined benefit cost (income) recognized in OCI  349,632  (102,752) 
Contributions  -  (549,000) 
Retirement asset at December 31  (P282,822)  (P812,829) 
 
The sensitivity of the DBO to changes in the principal actuarial assumptions, assuming all other 
assumptions were held constant follows: 
 
 2020  2019 
Decrease in DBO due to 100 bps increase in discount rate (P222,386); (7.3%)  (P168,978); (7.1%) 
Increase in DBO due to 100 bps decrease in discount rate  254,605; 8.4%  192,105; 8.1%  

    
Increase in DBO due to 100 bps increase in salary rate 248,671; 8.2%  190,228; 8.0%  
Decrease in DBO due to 100 bps decrease in salary rate  (221,764); (7.3%)  (170,548); (7.2%) 
    
Increase in DBO if no attrition rates 1,694,948; 55.9%  1,161,142; 49.1% 
 
The allocation of plan assets is 100% cash and cash equivalents.  These plan assets are valued by the 
fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-market valuation. While no significant changes in asset 
allocation are expected in the next financial year, the retirement plan trustee may make changes at 
any time. 
 
 2020  2019 
Weighted average duration of the DBO  7.9 years  7.6 years 
 
Expected future benefit payments are as follows:     
   
Financial year 2020  2019 

Year 1  P255,601  P208,574 
Year 2  259,761  226,370 
Year 3  500,771  230,346 
Year 4  213,680  453,694 
Year 5  234,665  191,087 
Year 6-10  2,398,403  2,269,083 
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The expected future contribution as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 is nil and P50,000, respectively. 
 
NOTE 19 - INCOME TAXES 
 
Provision for income tax consists of the following: 
 

 2020  2019 
Current  P758,559  P172,905 
Deferred 494,240  751,552 
 P1,252,799  P924,457 
 
A reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at the statutory income tax rate to effective 
income tax as shown in profit or loss is as follows: 
 

 2020  2019 
Income before income tax P5,434,664  P3,819,084 
 
Income tax at statutory income tax rate of 30%  P1,630,399  P1,145,725 
Adjust for tax effect of:    

Non-deductible expenses 96,581  95,005 
Income subject to final tax (474,181)  (376,420) 
Expired MCIT  -  60,147 

Effective income tax  P1,252,799  P924,457 
    
Domestic corporations are subject to RCIT of 30% pursuant to Republic Act (RA) No. 9337. The 
regulations also provide for MCIT of 2% on modified gross income and allow a NOLCO. MCIT is 
recognized when it is higher than the RCIT. The MCIT and NOLCO may be applied against the Bank’s 
income tax liability and taxable income, respectively, for the three immediately succeeding taxable 
years. 
 
Effective July 2008, RA No. 9504 was approved giving corporate taxpayers an option to claim itemized 
deductions or optional standard deduction equivalent to 40% of gross income. Once the option is 
made, it shall be irrevocable for the taxable year for which the option was made. The Bank opted to 
continue claiming itemized deductions for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. 
 
Current tax regulations also provide for the ceiling on the amount of Entertainment, Amusement and 
Recreation (EAR) expense that can be claimed as a deduction against taxable income. Under the 
regulations, EAR expense allowed as a deductible expense for taxpayers engaged in sale of services like 
the Bank is limited to the actual EAR paid or incurred but not to exceed 1% of net revenue. 
Representation and entertainment expense incurred amounted to P55,134 and P52,738 in 2020 and 
2019, respectively (see Note 16).  
 
The components of deferred tax assets at December 31 follow: 
 

 Allowance 
for 

impairment  

Retirement 
liability 
(asset) 

Excess of 
MCIT 

over RCIT NOLCO Total 
At January 1, 2019 P2,850,794 P36,178 P159,544 P1,430,847 P4,477,363 
Credited (Charged) to profit or loss 6,652 (111,574) 112,758 (759,388) (751,552) 
Charged to OCI - (30,826) - - (30,826) 
At December 31, 2019 2,857,446 (106,222) 272,302 671,459 3,694,985 
Credited (Charged) to profit or loss 395,408 54,113 (272,302) (671,459) (494,240) 
Credited to OCI - 104,890 - - 104,890 

Balance at December 31, 2020 P3,252,854 P52,781 P- P- P3,305,635 
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The Bank’s carryforward benefit of MCIT that can be claimed as tax credit against RCIT is as follows: 
 

Year incurred Amount Applied Expired Balance Expiry year 
2019 P172,905 (P172,905) P- P- 2022 
2018 91,673 (91,673) - - 2021 
2017 7,724 (7,724) - - 2020 
2016 60,147 - (60,147) - 2019 

 P332,449 (P272,302) (P60,147) P-  
 
The details of the Bank’s NOLCO which can be applied against future taxable income are as follows: 
 

  Applied   
Year incurred Amount Year Amount Balance Expiry year 

2017 P4,341,366 2020 (P2,238,195) P- 2020 
  2019 (2,103,171)   

2016 1,090,660 2019 (428,121) - 2019 
  2018 (662,539)   
 P5,432,026  (P5,432,026) P-  

 
Movements in income tax payable (overpayment) are as follows: 
 
 2020  2019 
Balance at January 1 (P195,495)  (P368,400)
Charged to profit or loss (income tax due during the year) 758,559  172,905 
Income tax paid during the year (219,155)  - 
Balance at December 31  P343,909  (P195,495)
    
Provision for income tax in 2020 is net of applied MCIT of P272,302. 
 
NOTE 20 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The related parties of the Bank are as follows:   
 

Name of related party  Related party relationship 
Abacus Global Technovisions, Inc.  Under common management  
Hedge Issues Management and Leverage Advisors, Inc.  Under common management 

Monica Maria Barcelona - Bejasa 
 Close family member of key 

management personnel of 
stockholder 

Lorenzo Miguel E. Centeno 
 Close family member of key 

management personnel of 
stockholder 

 
In the ordinary conduct of business, the Bank has transactions with its related parties which are as 
follows: 
 
Related party transactions 
 

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019 
Abacus Global  

Rent expense (Note 17) P540,000 P540,000 Technovisions, Inc. 
Monica Maria Barcelona - Bejasa Interest income  174,409 218,718 
Lorenzo Miguel E. Centeno  Interest income 67,537 - 
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Transactions with related parties are secured. The Bank has neither given nor received any guarantees 
for these related party transactions. 
 
Related party balance 
 

Name of related party Nature of balance 

Nature of the  
consideration to 

be provided in settlement 2020 2019 

Monica Maria Loans receivable     
Barcelona - Bejasa    (Note 9) Cash P2,131,745 P2,788,996 

Lorenzo Miguel E. Loans receivable     
Centeno    (Note 9) Cash 1,858,682 - 

   P3,990,427 P2,788,996 

     
The Bank has loan transactions with its officers, employees and other related parties. Under the 
current banking regulations, the total outstanding loans of each DOSRI (or Directors, Officers, 
Stockholders and Related Interests) shall be limited to an amount equivalent to their respective 
unencumbered deposits and book value of their paid-in capital contribution in the Bank, provided 
unsecured loans shall not exceed 30% of their respective total loans (individual ceiling). As regards the 
aggregated ceiling, the amount of aggregate loans to DOSRI, of which 70% must be secured, should 
not exceed the Bank's net worth or 15% of the Bank's total loan portfolio, whichever is lower. These 
limits/ceilings do not apply to loans secured by assets considered as non-risk as defined in the 
regulations. 
 
The Bank has loans receivable from its employees amounting to P77,207 and P175,729 as at             
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These loans are unsecured and classified as loans to 
individual primarily for personal use purpose - salary with applicable interest rate of 7.5% in 2020 and 
2019. 
 
During the year, the Bank neither has any DOSRI loans nor any unsecured and non-performing DOSRI 
loans.  Information on related party loans is broken down as follows: 
 

 
 DOSRI loans 

 Related party loans 
(inclusive of DOSRI loans) 

Particulars 2020 2019  2020 2019 
Outstanding loans P- P-  P3,990,427 P2,788,996 
Percent of DOSRI/Related party loans to total loan 

portfolio 0.00% 0.00% 
 

2.27% 
 

2.87% 
Percent of unsecured DOSRI/Related party loans 

to total DOSRI/Related party loans 0.00% 0.00% 
 

0.00% 0.00% 
Percent of past due DOSRI/Related party loans to 

total DOSRI/Related party loans 0.00% 0.00% 
 

0.00% 0.00% 
Percent of non-performing DOSRI/Related party 

loans to total DOSRI/Related party loans 0.00% 0.00% 
 

0.00% 0.00% 
Key management personnel 
 
The remuneration of key management personnel consists of: 
 

 2020  2019 
Short-term employee benefits P1,836,632  P1,882,717 
Long-term employee benefits -  - 
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Retirement cost 
 
The Bank has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit plan covering all of its regular officers and 
employees. The retirement fund is administered by Eastwest Asset Management and placed into a 
time deposit account.  See Note 18 for the additional information on the Bank’s retirement plan.   
 
NOTE 21 - KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
The key financial performance indicators are as follows: 
 
 2020  2019 
    Return on average equity 1.96%  1.71% 
    
Return on average assets 1.74%  1.47% 
    
Net interest margin 6.84%  4.64% 
    
Capital to risk assets ratio 89.68%  93.10% 
            
NOTE 22 - OTHER MATTERS 
 
a. COVID-19 outbreak 
 
In a move to contain the COVID-19 outbreak, on March 13, 2020, the Office of the President of the 
Philippines issued a Memorandum directive to impose stringent social distancing measures in the 
National Capital Region effective March 15, 2020. On March 16, 2020, Presidential Proclamation No. 
929 was issued, declaring a State of Calamity throughout the Philippines for a period of six months and 
imposed enhanced community quarantine throughout the Island of Luzon until April 12, 2020, which 
was subsequently extended to April 30, 2020 and then further extended to May 31, 2020. These 
measures have caused disruptions to businesses and economic activities, and its impact on business 
continue to evolve.  
 
The outbreak caused the Bank delayed collections in compliance with the Implementing Rules and 
Regulations of Section 4(aa) of RA No. 11469, otherwise known as the “Bayanihan to Heal as One Act” 
which mandates all covered institutions to implement a 30-day grace period for all loans with principal 
and/or interest, penalties, fees and other charges during the imposed enhanced community 
quarantine and shall automatically be extended if the enhance community quarantine period is 
extended.  In addition, the Bank applied remedial management policy, to the extent necessary, to 
sympathize with its customers with regard to the adverse impact of the said pandemic to its valued 
customers.  
 
The Bank is closely monitoring the current economic condition to assess the adequacy of its cash flows. 
Though the Bank does not have any current issues concerning the sufficiency of its funds to finance its 
resumed operation, the BOD approved the Bank to apply on BSP provided regulatory relief. 
 
b. Events after reporting period  
 
On March 26, 2021, President Rodrigo Duterte signed into law RA No. 11534, also known as “Corporate 
Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises Act” or “CREATE” Act which reduced the corporate income 
tax rates and rationalized the current tax incentives system by making it time bound, targeted and 
performance based.  CREATE Act introduces reforms in the areas of corporate income tax, Value-
Added Tax and tax incentives, aside from providing COVID-19 reliefs to taxpayers.  
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Effective July 1, 2020, domestic corporations with total assets not exceeding P100 million and taxable 
income of P5 million and below shall be subject to 20% income tax rate while the other domestic 
corporations and resident foreign corporations will be subject to 25% income tax rate. 

 
The effects of the changes computed without regard to the specific date when specific revenue, 
expenses and other transactions occur as provided for under Section 27 (A) of the CREATE Act are as 
follows: 

 
 December 31, 2020 Under CREATE Act Impact 

Provision for income tax  P1,252,799 P1,700,351 P447,552 
Income tax payable 343,909 258,004 (85,905) 
Deferred tax assets 3,305,635 2,754,696 (550,939) 
Accumulated other 

comprehensive loss, net 
(436,080) (453,562) (17,482) 

 
NOTE 23 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE  
 
Presented below is the supplementary information which is required by the BIR under its existing 
Revenue Regulations (RR) to be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements in addition to the 
disclosures mandated under PFRSs. 
 
A. REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 15-2010 
 
In compliance with the requirements of RR No. 15-2010 issued on November 25, 2010, hereunder are 
the information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year ended 
December 31, 2020: 
 
1) The amount of gross receipts tax (GRT) paid and accrued during the year 
 

The Bank is a non-VAT registered entity engaged in development banking business. It paid an 
amount of P486,304 as percentage tax based on the gross income received amounting to 
P9,726,080 and accrued additional GRT amounting to P216,561 for the gross income received 
amounting to P4,331,218. 

 
2) Documentary stamp tax (DST) 
 

Transaction    Amount  DST thereon 
Loans    P175,515,000  P1,033,415 
Certificate of time deposit  9,344,211  70,082 
    P184,859,211  P1,103,497 

 
3) Withholding taxes 
 
 The amounts of withholding taxes paid or accrued during the year are as follows: 
 

 Paid  Accrued  Total 
Withholding taxes on compensation P115,189  P12,050  P127,239 
Expanded withholding tax 88,599  24,247  112,846 
Final withholding taxes on dividend payments 

and interest 46,739  6,512  53,251 
 P250,527  P42,809  P293,336 
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4) The schedule of taxes and licenses paid/accrued during the year 
 

Local  
Mayor’s permit P114,461 
Real property tax 46,566 
Others 3,800 
 164,827 
National  
Gross receipt tax 702,865 
BIR annual registration 500 

 703,365 
 P868,192 

 
5) Deficiency tax assessments and tax cases 

 
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank has no pending tax cases and has not received any tax 
assessment notices from the BIR. 

 
B. REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 19-2011 
 
RR No. 19-2011 issued on December 9, 2011 requires the disclosure of the schedules of taxable 
revenues, cost of sales/services, non-operating and taxable other income, itemized deductions, taxes 
and licenses and other significant tax information in the notes to financial statements. 
 
The Bank’s transactions are subject only to regular/normal tax rate. It does not have transactions 
exempt from tax or subject to special rate. 
 
Following are the required schedules in compliance with the aforesaid revenue issuances: 
 
1) Revenues 

  
Interest income - loans and receivables P12,375,754 
Service fees 1,483,627 
Sale of services P13,859,381 

 
2) Cost of services 

  
Direct charges - salaries, wages and benefits P4,123,117 
Direct charges - others 367,276 

 P4,490,393 
 

3) Other taxable income not subjected to final tax 
  

Miscellaneous income P5,442 
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4) Ordinary allowable itemized deductions  
  

Taxes and licenses P938,274 
Rental  541,000 
Depreciation 58,979 
Representation and entertainment 55,134 
Charitable contributions 55,000 
Amortization - intangible assets  33,333 
Transportation and travel 22,669 
Amortization - leasehold improvements  14,933 
Others:  

Professional fees 659,611 
Directors’ fees 420,000 
Communication, light and water 184,138 
Security services 183,858 
Repairs and maintenance - labor or labor and materials  39,819 
Insurance 30,173 
Advertising and promotions 23,517 
Miscellaneous 439,594 
 P3,700,032 
 

5) NOLCO applied P2,238,195 
 

6) Taxes and licenses 
 

The details of taxes and licenses are disclosed in section A of this note. 
 

C. REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 34-2020 
 
RR No. 34-2020 issued on December 18, 2020 requires taxpayers to submit to the BIR Form No. 1709 
(RPT Form) to allow it to verify that taxpayers are reporting their related party transactions at arm’s 
length prices.   
 
The Bank is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions provided 
under this RR.   
 
 








